
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 4, 2019 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – FEBRUARY 4, 2019 

 
 

Board Room                Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Prospective Business & Legal Matters 
(SCHEDULED ONE-HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Pastor Steven Stutzman, Lebanon Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Cleveland School Property transfer to RC Industrial Development Authority 
   

BOARD APPOINTMENTS………………………………………………………………………A-1  
 
CPRWM Board 
 
Tim Lovelace   4-Year Term 
 
RC Equalization Board 
 
Cuba Porter    4-Year Term 
Kemper Fuller (Alternate) 4-Year Term 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 4, 2019 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of January 9, 2019           

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. Cleveland School Property transfer to RC IDA……………………………………C-1 
 

2. County Unsafe Building Ordinance………………………………………………….C-2 
 

3. County Litter Ordinance……………………………………………………………….C-3 
 

4. County By-Laws…………………………………………………………………………C-4 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. 2019 Rural Caucus & VACo County Government Day………..………………….D-1 
 

2. CPRWMA FY18 Financial Audit………………………………………………………D-2 
 

3. CIFA/VDOT/SVCC Smart Scale Training…………………………………………….D-3 
 

4. Elk Garden School………………………………………………………………………D-4 
 

5. Swords Creek Community Center……………………………………………………D-5 
 

REQUESTS 
  

6. Authorization to Award County’s IT Service Contract. ……………….………....D-6 
 

7.  Authorization of Travel Requests……………………………………………………D-7 
 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 4, 2019 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………K 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….N 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..O   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by _________________, second by ___________ and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Prospective Business matters 
pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(A)(5) and to discuss Legal matters pursuant to Section 2.2-
3712(A)(7). 

The vote was: 
Aye:  ________ 
Nay:  ________  

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace -  

Lou Ann Wallace -   

Carl Rhea -  

Steve Breeding -  

David Eaton -  

Rebecca Dye -  

Harry Ferguson - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by _______________, second by _________________ and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  _______ 
Nay:  _______ 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 2/4/19               6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 
1. Transfer Cleveland School Property to RC IDA   

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Resolution  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Harry Ferguson  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

  

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Public Hearing on Monday, 
February 4, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. to hear public comments concerning the transfer of the 
Cleveland School Property to the Russell County Industrial Development Authority.  

The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Board of Supervisors 
Meeting Room at the Russell County Governmental Center, 137 Highland Drive, 
Lebanon, Virginia during the regular February meeting. 

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 2/4/19        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS………………………………………………………………………A-1  
 
CPRWM Board 
 
Tim Lovelace    4-Year Term 
 
RC Equalization Board 
 
Cuba Porter    4-Year Term 
Kemper Fuller (Alternate)  4-Year Term 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  Board Discretion.  
SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.  





 
Board of Supervisors                           Action Item B-1 
137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

   Meeting:  2/4/2019       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• January 9, 2019 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















 
Board of Supervisors Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 2/4/19                 6:00 PM 
  

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s January 2019 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s January 2019 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s January 2019 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• January 2019 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 2/4/19         6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
1. Cleveland School Property transfer to RC IDA……………………………………C-1 

 
2. County Unsafe Building Ordinance………………………………………………….C-2 

 
3. County Litter Ordinance……………………………………………………………….C-3 

 
4. County By-Laws…………………………………………………………………………C-4 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA

Default View

www.interactiveGIS.com Printed 02/01/2019 

0 328 656 ft



RUSSELL COUNTY VA06/28/2017Print Date:

2,365,200

0.380

1.00

0

0

C)Grade Factor    (

)Phys Depr. %   (

Assessed Value:

Replacement Value:

Dwelling Value:

Total Prop.

Total Imp.

Total Land 100,000

100,000

Land Use Value

0

0

0

BRICK

Owner:Map#:

Acreage:

Record:

Sale Price:

Stories:

Remarks:

Deed Book

-

Instrument #

Dwelling Valuation

Year Built:

-

911 Adr:

Ratio:

Air Condition:

No. Rooms:

No. Bedrooms:

No. Baths: F / H

Zoning:

Exterior

Construction:

Street:

Street:

Utilities:

Utilities:

Use Class:

Interior:

Floors:

Foundation:

Exterior Walls:

Roofing:

User Codes:

Date Inspected

At Home

Initials

Previous Values

Bldg

Land

Total

Land Description Unit Size RateCls  Adj Value

Improvement Length Width Condition Deprc. Total Value

Description Story Size Class Factor Rate Value

16566

CLEVELAND JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL

1

116R      803A

1962

0   5168 CLEVELAND RD

2.00

0

0

0 0

MG

0 0.00

0.000

20120827

COMM LOT 0A 10000099 100000.A 0.000.00

Mthd Grd Dept

                +--------170--------+
               50                   :
                :     +26+          :
+-62---+        +-50-14 148+       102
:     116+                 :        :
38       :                64        :
4       50                 :        :
:        SCHL----172-------10      12+
:        :                 SCHL     32
98       :                  :        +40--+
:       76                 76             :
:       96                  :             :
:        :SCHL             148          90:
40       :-------172--------:             :
+--78----+                  :             :
                            :    +--78----+
                            :   38
                            +40--+

Item Rate ValueQty Size

PO BOX 66

CLEVELAND VA                   24225

Occupancy:

Interior

Floors:

Site

BRICK

CONCRETE

COMPOSITE

HIP

TILE

TILE

SHEET ROCK

PAVED

PUB SEWER

PUB WATER

100000

5580400

0



1 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL 

LEBANON, VIRGINIA 

 

Ordinance 
 

At a regular meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held in the Russell 

County Government Center, Lebanon, Virginia, on the 7th day of November, 2016. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Present            Vote 

Steve Breeding, Chairman                                                                                                      Aye 

David Eaton, Vice-Chairman         Aye  

Tim Lovelace           Aye 

Lou Ann Wallace          Aye 

Carl Rhea           Aye 

Rebecca Dye           Aye 

Mark Mitchell           Aye 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 On motion of Mark Mitchell, seconded by Lou Ann Wallance, which carried 7-0, the 

following ordinance was adopted: 

ORDINANCE TO COMPEL THE REPAIR OR REMOVAL OF 

BUILDINGS AND OTHER STRUCTURES  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 15.2-906 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, authorizes 

Russell County to enact an ordinance to compel property owners to remove, repair or secure any 

building, wall or any other structure which might endanger the public health or safety of other 

residents of Russell County; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to properly enforce the Virginia Uniform Statewide Building Code, 

the Russell County Board of Supervisors deems it necessary to enact such an ordinance. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors: 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



2 

 

1.  The owners of any property located within Russell County shall, at such time or times as 

the Board of Supervisors, acting through its Building Inspector, may prescribe, remove, repair or 

secure any building, wall or any other structure which might endanger the public health or safety 

of other residents of the County. 

2.  The County, acting through its Building Inspector and other agents or employees, may 

remove, repair, or secure any building, wall or any other structure which might endanger the 

public health or safety of other residents of the County if the owner and lienholder of such 

property, after reasonable notice and a reasonable time to do so, has failed to remove, repair, or 

secure the building, wall or other structure.  Notice shall be given by:  (i) a written notice mailed 

by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to the last known address of the property 

owner; and (ii) publication once a week for two successive weeks in a newspaper having general 

circulation in the County.  The County. shall not remove, repair or secure any building or 

structure without first presenting a recommendation for same to the Board of Supervisors in an 

open meeting for discussion and approval.  The requisite notice to the landowner may precede or 

follow presentation to and approval by the Board of Supervisors.  No action shall be taken by the 

County to remove, repair, or secure any building, wall or other structure for at least thirty (30) 

days following the later of the return of the receipt or newspaper publication. 

3.  In the event the County, acting through its agents or employees, removes, repairs, or 

secures any building, wall or any other structure after complying with the notice provisions of 

this Ordinance, the cost or expenses thereof shall be chargeable to and paid by the owners of 

such property and may be collected by the locality as taxes are collected. 

4.  Every charge authorized by this Ordinance with which the owner of any such property 

has been assessed and which remains unpaid shall constitute a lien against such property ranking 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Underline



3 

 

on a parity with liens for unpaid local taxes and enforceable in the same manner as provided in 

Articles 3 (§ 58.1-3940 et seq.) and 4 (§ 58.1-3965 et seq.) of Chapter 39 of Title 58.1.  The 

County may waive such liens in order to facilitate the sale of the property.  Such liens may be 

waived only as to a purchaser who is unrelated by blood or marriage to the owner and who has 

no business association with the owner.  All such liens shall remain a personal obligation of the 

owner of the property at the time the liens were imposed. 

5.  Failure of a landowner to remove, repair, or secure any building, wall, or any other 

structure which might endanger the public health or safety or other residents of the County, after 

having been provided the aforementioned notice and compliance period shall be punishable by a 

$1,000.00 civil penalty. 

6.  This Ordinance shall supersede and take the place of all previous ordinances compelling 

the repair or removal of buildings and structures, as previously adopted. 

7.  All ordinances and portions of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

8.  Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be found to be invalid due to conflict with 

federal or state law or regulation, or found to be otherwise invalid by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such invalidity shall in no way affect any other provision of this Ordinance, and the 

invalid portion of such Ordinance shall be deemed to be deleted here from without affecting any 

other provision of this Ordinance. 

 This ordinance shall become effective 7th November, 2016. 

  

 

 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Underline

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Callout
Compliance Period - Timeframe to Complete & Percentage of Completion

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



4 

 

 Adopted this 7th day of November, 2016. 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      STEVE BREEDING, CHAIRMAN 

      Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 

Attest: ______________________ 

           Lonzo Lester 

           County Administrator & Clerk 



 

 
1 

 

Russell County                                                                                        
Litter Control and                                                                                                     

Disposal Ordinance 

§ 17.2-200. Authorization. 

 This Ordinance is adopted and enacted pursuant to § 15.2-901; Article 2 Waste 
and Recycling, §§ 15.2-927 et seq and § 33.1-346 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, for the purpose of promoting the public safety, health, welfare, convenience 
and enjoyment of the general public, public travel, it is hereby declared to be in the 
public interest to regulate and restrict the disposal of trash, garbage refuse, litter or 
other unsightly matter on public highways, right-of-way, property adjacent to such 
highway or right-of-way, on private property, and solid waste facilities of the County, 
including but not limited to convenience centers, transfer stations and solitary landfills. 

Sec. 17.2-201. Title. 

 This chapter shall be know and may be cited as the “Russell County Litter 
Control and Disposal Ordinance.” 

Sec. 17.2-202. Definitions. 

 For purposes of this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the 
meaning respectively ascribed by this section. 

Administrator means the Russell County Administrator or his or her duly 
authorized designee. 

Ashes means the residue resulting from the burning of wood, coal, coke or other 
combustible material. 

Board of Supervisors means the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

Brush means bushes, briars, branches, leaves and similar material. 

Brush, pruning and tree trimmings means trimmings from growing or dead trees or 
bushes no more than six inches in diameter. Any such trimmings over four 
inches will not be accepted. These items will only be accepted at the transfer 



 

 
2 

 

station, with the applicable tipping fee being paid. This shall not include roots or 
stumps that exceed four inches in diameter.  

Bulk waste means appliances, furniture, bedding material, automobile parts, 
mechanical equipment, mechanical parts, and carpet.  

Commercials establishment means a building or other structure and/or lot or tract 
of land used for or as a part of the operation of a business enterprise, whether for 
profit or not, which is not used in whole as a residential unit. For the purposes of 
this ordinance, any structure which is used by the same owner or tenant for both 
residential and business purposes shall be deemed to be a commercial 
establishment, provided however, that if the Administrator determines that a 
mixed use structure generates a volume of solid waste that does not exceed the 
average amount of waste generated by a residence in Russell County, then such 
mixed use structure may be deemed to be a residential unit.  

Compacted waste means refuse or waste which has been reduced in volume by 
mechanical or hydraulic means and remains in this state of reduced volume until 
deposited at the transfer station. 

Containers mean any of the following: 

1. Residential Reusable Curbside Receptacle: a receptacle made of plastic, metal 
or fiberglass with a capacity not to exceed thirty-nine (39) gallons, a loaded 
weight of no more than thirty-five (35) pounds, having a tight fitting lid, and 
handles of adequate strength to allow for the container to be lifted.  

2. Non-Reusable: Plastic sacks designed for refuse disposal with sufficient wall 
strength to maintain physical integrity when lifted by the top; securely tied at 
the top for collection, with a capacity not to exceed thirty (30) gallons and a 
loaded weight not to exceed thirty-five (35) pounds. Non-reusable containers 
shall also include garbage compactor bags which meet the capacity and 
weight requirements for plastic sacks. Both reusable and non-reusable 
containers shall also be referred to as standard containers in this Ordinance.  

3. Bulk: Bins of metal construction capable of being emptied by mechanical 
equipment operated by solid waste disposal operators, the Cumberland 
Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority, the County, towns located in 
the County and their contractors, generally referred to as dumpsters, which 



 

 
3 

 

have a capacity of at least two and not more than eight cubic yards. Also 
included are large capacity roll on dumpsters. 

Curbside means that portion of the street or highway right of way adjacent to the paced 
or traveled portion of a primary or secondary roadway as established by the Virginia 
Department of Transportation. 

Contractor means the person with whom Russell County may contract for the collection 
of solid waste generated within Russell County, however nothing shall be deemed to 
require the County to contract for collection of all or part of its solid waste. In the event 
that the County shall contract for collection of all or part of its solid waste, then the term 
“Contractor” shall be substituted for Russell County where appropriate in the 
Ordinance.  

Convenience Center means a collection point designated and operate by Russell County 
at which designated solid waste may be deposited.  

County the term “County” shall be deemed to refer to Russell County unless the text of 
the Ordinance specifically refers to some other county. 

Disposal means the storage, collection, disposal or handling of refuse. 

Garbage means discarded materials composed of animal, vegetable or other organic 
matter. 

Litter means any solid waste that is disposed of as prohibited herein or allowed to be 
carelessly discarded or scattered about in unsightly matter. Litter shale include, but not 
be limited to, garbage, trash, refuse and rubbish as referred to within the Ordinance. 

Litter bag means a bag or sack, of durable material, which is large enough to serve as a 
receptacle for litter inside a vehicle or watercraft which is similar in size and capacity to 
a state approved litter bag.  

Litter receptacle means a container with a capacity of not less than ten gallons 
constructed of such quality as to maintain the original shape when placed at an outdoor 
location; reasonably resistant to rust and corrosion; and placed for use as a depository 
for litter. Appliances (refrigerators, etc.) cannot be used as litter receptacles.  

Open dump means a site on which any solid waste is placed, discharged, deposited, 
injected, dumped, or spilled, so as to create a nuisance or so as to pose within the 



 

 
4 

 

determination of the Administrator for substantial present or potential hazard to 
human health or the environment, including the pollution of air, land, surface water or 
ground water. A disposal facility operation without all permits required by the state 
and/or federal governments shall be considered an open dump. 

Operator means the person responsible for the overall operation and site management of 
a solid waste facility.  

Owner means the person, corporation, or other legal entity in whom is vested the title to 
and interest in the land on which a solid waste management facility is located; the 
person, corporation or other legal entity in whom is vested title to and interest in the 
land upon which a residence, residential unit, multi-unit residential unit, commercial 
establishment or industry is located.  

Permit means the written permission issued by the state or federal government to own, 
operate, or construct a solid waste management facility; and any licenses issued 
pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance.  

Person means an individual, corporation, partnership, association, a governmental 
body, a municipal corporation, or any other legal entity.  

Recycling means the process of separating a given waste material from the waste stream 
and processing it so that it is used again as a raw material for a product, which may or 
may not be similar to the original thereof.  

Refuse means discarded waste materials in a solid or semi-solid state, consisting of 
garbage, rubbish, or a combination thereof.  

Residential unit means a group of rooms located within a building and forming in single 
inhabitable unit with facilities which are used or are intended to be used for living, 
sleeping, cooing and/or eating. A residential unit shall also include buildings containing 
multiple single-family dwelling units, however each unit shall be deemed to be a 
separate dwelling unit for billing purposes. The term “residential unit “shall also be 
deemed to include mobile home parks.  

Salvage means the authorized, controlled removal of waste materials from a solid waste 
management facility.  



 

 
5 

 

Scavenge means the unauthorized or uncontrolled removal of waste materials from a 
solid waste management facility.  

Sludge means any solid, semi-solid or liquid waste generated from the a municipal, 
commercial or industrial wastewater treatment plant, air pollution control facility, or 
other waste producing facility, but as used in this Ordinance the term does not include 
the treated effluent from a Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Solid Waste means any garbage, refuse, sludge, or other discarded material, including 
solid, liquid, semi-solid or contained gaseous material, resulting from residential, 
industrial, commercial, mining or agricultural operations and from community 
activities but does not include (i) solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage, (ii) 
solid or dissolved material in irrigation return flows or in industrial discharges which 
are sources subject to a permit from the State Water Control Board, or (iii) source, 
special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Federal Atomic Energy Act of 
1954, as amended. 

The solid waste herein defined also may refer to the following further defined types, 
i.e.: 

1. Coal Mine Waste: Any commercial waste, construction/ demolition waste, debris 
waste, inert waste, metals, garbage, mining equipment and/or machinery and 
any other waste generated prior, during, or after mining activities and which 
may be disposed of in compliance with this Ordinance and all other applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations.  

2. Commercial Waste: All solid waste generated by establishments engaged in 
business operations other than manufacturing or construction. This category 
includes, but is not limited to, solid waste resulting from the operation of stores, 
markets, office buildings, restaurants, and shopping centers.  

3. Construction/Demolition Waste: The waste building material, packaging and 
rubble, resulting from construction, remodeling, repair and demolition 
operations on pavement, houses, commercial buildings, and other structures, 

4. Debris Waste: Waste resulting from land clearing operations, including but not 
limited to stumps, wood, brush, leaves, soil and road spoils. 

5. Household Waste: Any waste material, including garbage, trash, and refuse 
normally produced or derived from single and/or multiple residential 



 

 
6 

 

households and residences. Household wastes do not include sanitary waste in 
septic tanks (septage). 

6. Hazardous Waste: A solid waste or combination of solid waste which, because of 
its quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infections characteristics may: 
(a) cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase in 
serious irreversible, or incapacitating reversible illness; or (b) pose a substantial 
present or potential hazard to human health, the Collection/Disposal System, or 
the environment from improperly treated, stores, transported, disposed of or 
otherwise managed. The foregoing definition is intended to include any waste 
now or hereafter designated as such by state or federal agencies with jurisdiction 
and authority to promulgate and enforce rules and regulations for the handling 
and disposal of hazardous and other waste.  

7. Ignitable Waste: 
a. Liquids having a flash point of less than 140 degrees Fahrenheit (60 

degrees Centigrade). 
b. non-liquids liable to cause fires through friction, absorption of moisture, 

spontaneous chemical change or retained heat, or which are liable, when 
ignited, to burn so vigorously and persistently as to create a hazard. 

c. Ignitable compressed gases’, and/or oxidizers. 
8. Industrial Waste: Any solid waste generated by manufacturing or industrial 

process that is not a regulated hazardous waste. Such waste may include, but is 
not limited to, waste resulting from the following manufacturing processes: 
Electric power generation; fertilizer/agricultural chemicals; food and related 
products/byproducts; inorganic chemicals; iron and steel manufacturing; mining 
or oil and gas operations; leather and leather products; nonferrous metals 
manufacturing/foundries; organic chemicals; plastics and resins manufacturing; 
pulp and paper industry; rubber and miscellaneous plastic products; stone, glass, 
clay, and concrete products; textile manufacturing; transportation equipment; 
and water treatment.  

9. Inert Waste: Solid waste which is chemically and biologically stable from further 
degradation and considered to be non-reactive. Inert waste includes rubble, 
concrete, broken bricks, bricks, and blocks. 

10. Infectious Waste: Any solid waste if it is capable of producing an infectious 
disease in humans; is one of the controlled infectious wastes listed in any 
relevant section or sections of the Infectious Waste Management regulations of 



 

 
7 

 

the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality as applicable at any given 
time, or is identified as infectious by a licensed physician or registered nurse. A 
waste shall be considered to be capable of producing an infectious disease if it 
has been, is or may have been contaminated by an organism that is or may be 
pathogenic to humans and if such organism has a significant probability of being 
present in sufficient quantities and with sufficient virulence to transmit disease. 
If the exact cause of a disease is unknown, but the health care professional in 
charge suspects the presence of a pathogen in the waste is the case, such waste 
shall be managed as if the pathogen were identified and such waste shall be 
considered to be infectious waste. 

11. Institutional/Government Waste: All solid waste emanating from institutions such 
as, but not limited to, hospitals, nursing homes, orphanages, and public or 
private schools. It can include infectious waste from health care facilities and 
research facilities which has not been classified as a hazardous waste by the 
Virginia Hazardous Waste Regulations or the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. Infectious waste which has been defined by state and federal 
law, rule or regulation as hazardous waste must be excluded from the waste 
stream.  

12. Putrescible Waste: Solid waste which contains organic material capable of being 
decomposed by microorganism, and which causes odors.  

13. Residential Waste: Household waste.  
14. Waste Oil: A spent petroleum product or lubricating fluid from vehicles or 

equipment.  

Solid waste management facility means any facility which engages in a planned program 
for effectively controlling the storage, collection, transportation, processing and reuse, 
conversion or disposal of solid waste in a safe, sanitary, aesthetically acceptable, 
environmentally sound and economic manner, in full compliance with all applicable 
local, state and federal regulations. The Russell County Transfer Station and Russell 
County Convenience Centers are Solid Waste Management Facilities.  

Trash means non-combustible discarded materials including, but not limited to, ashes, 
scrap metal, glass, brick, concrete or other construction materials.  

Uncompacted waste means refuse or waste which has not been reduced in volume by 
mechanical or hydraulic means, or if so, has not been maintained in this reduced 
volume state during the transportation to the landfill. 



 

 
8 

 

Waste generator means the person who actually produces waste intended for disposal at 
the landfill. 

Waste management facility (See also Solid Waste Management Facility) means that area 
designated by the County Administrator for the collection of refuse intended for 
disposal at the Transfer Station or Collection Centers. 

White goods means refrigerators, stoves, clothes dryers, washing machines, water 
heaters, window air conditioners and other large appliances of similar size or character, 
and waste metal products.  

Yard waste means decomposable waste materials generated by yard and lawn care, and 
include leaves, grass trimmings, brush up to six inches in diameter and shrubs and tree 
trimmings arising from general landscaping maintenance. This shall not include roots 
or stumps that exceed four inches in diameter.  

 Where terms are not defined in this Ordinance and the context or practice 
requires definition they shall have the meaning specified in Chapter 14 of Title 10.1 of 
the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended and/or specified in other relevant statutes, 
and/or the Solid Waste Management Regulations of the Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality, as now or hereafter adopted as are applicable. 

 In case of conflict, the statutes and regulations applicable to the particular 
requirement involved shall prevail over those in this Ordinance.  

Sec. 17.2-203. General prohibitions.  

A. Moving Violations 
1. Littering Prohibited: Penalties 

It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, deposit, discard or otherwise 
dispose of litter in or upon any public or private property within Russell County, 
with or without permission of the owner, including, but not limited to any street, 
sidewalk, park, body of water, vacant or unoccupied lot, except in public litter 
receptacles, or in authorized private litter receptacles provided for public use, or in 
an area designated by the State Department of Health as a permitted disposal site.  

When a violation of the provisions of this section has been observed by any 
person, and the matter dumped or disposed of in the highway, right-of-way, 



 

 
9 

 

property adjacent to such highway or right-of-way, or private property has been 
ejected from a motor vehicle, the owner or operator of such motor vehicle shall be 
presumed to be the person ejecting such trash, garbage, refuse or other unsightly 
matter; provided, however, that such presumption shall be rebuttable by competent 
evidence.  

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a Class 
2 misdemeanor as punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance. Any 
second or subsequent offense shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor punishable as 
provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance. 

2. Uncovered Vehicles, Escape of Load 
No vehicle shall be driven or moved on any highway unless such vehicle is 
constructed or loaded to prevent any of its load from dropping, sifting, 
leaking, or otherwise escaping therefrom; provided, however, that sand or 
any substance to increase traction or water or other substance may be applied 
on a roadway in the cleaning or maintaining of such roadway by the state or 
local government agency having such responsibilities.  
 No person in an aircraft shall throw out, drop or deposit within the 
County any litter or other object.  
 Any operator of a vehicle from which an object has escaped, that may 
cause an obstruction or damage a vehicle or endanger travelers on such 
public property, shall immediately cause the public property to be cleaned of 
all objects and shall be responsible for all the costs of removal. 
 Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a 
Class 2 misdemeanor as punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this 
Ordinance.  Any second or subsequent offense shall constitute a Class 1 
misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance.  

B. Stationary Violations 
1. Areas Surrounding Commercial Establishments and Institutions 

It shall be the duty of each proprietor and each operator of any business, 
industry, or institution to keep the adjacent and surrounding area clear and free 
of litter. These areas include, but are not limited to, public and private sidewalks, 
roads, and alleys, grounds, parking lots, loading and unloading areas, and all 
vacant lots which are owned or leased by said establishment or institution. 



 

 
10 

 

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a 
Class 2 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this 
Ordinance. 

2. Keeping Exterior of Residential and Commercial Property Clean 

It shall be the duty of each residential property owner and tenant to keep all 
exterior private property free of litter. The owner of occupant of any premises 
within the County shall be responsible for sanitary conditions of such 
premises, and it shall be unlawful for any person to place, deposit or allow to 
be placed or deposited on his premises any solid waste, except as designated 
by the terms of this Ordinance. It shall be the duty of each owner and tenant 
to keep all exterior property free of litter or waste, these areas shall include, 
but not be limited to: sidewalks, public roads, alleys and driveways; yards 
and grounds; fences; walls and property lines; drainages and vacant lots in 
both residential and commercial areas. Any violation of this subsection shall 
constitute a Class 2 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 
of this Ordinance.  

 No person shall sweep into or deposit in any gutter, public road, street or 
water body within the County the accumulation of litter from any building or 
lot or from any public or private sidewalk or driveway. This includes, but is 
not limited to, rubbish, which includes grass clippings, hedge trimmings, 
leaves, pine needles, paper, plastic or other materials classified as litter or 
waste must be placed in an approved container and properly disposed. 
Persons owning or occupying property shall keep the sidewalk in front of 
their premises free of litter. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a 
Class 3 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this 
Ordinance.  

 Upon violation of this section, the County may proceed against either the 
tenant, owner or person in control or against all such persons. A warning 
citation as provided in Section 17.2-204(b) of this Ordinance shall be served 
on the owner or occupant of any premises upon which solid waste is found in 
violation of this section, giving the owner or occupant ten (10) days to remove 
such solid waste. If the owner or occupant does not comply with the terms of 



 

 
11 

 

such citation, he or she shall be served a summons for violation of this 
section. 

 This section shall not be deemed to prohibit the accumulation of litter 
awaiting the next regularly scheduled refuse or garbage collection if such 
property is served by the regularly scheduled garbage, refuse or litter 
collection. Such collections shall be deemed to be regular if such collection 
regularly occurs at least once per week or more frequently. 

3. Indiscriminate Dumping or Discarding of Litter and Solid Waste 

It shall be unlawful for any person to discard or dump along any street or 
road, on or off the right-of-way, any form of solid waste, rubbish, refuse, 
junk, motor vehicle or vehicle part, rubber tires, appliances, furniture, or 
any other material or equipment, on public or private property, with or 
without permission of the property owner, except in County approved 
receptacles provided for public use for the deposit of said material, or 
except in an area designated by the State Department of Health as a 
permitted solid waste disposal site or collection facility.  

C. Cleanup of Improperly Disposed Litter or Solid Waste 
1. Cleanup of Premises by County Authorization 

The owners of property within the County shall, within fourteen (14) days 
of receiving written notice from the County, remove from the property any and 
all trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances which might endanger the 
health or safety of other residents of the County. 

If after fourteen (14) days of receiving the notice, the owners of such 
property have failed to take action as directed by the notice, the County may 
have such trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances which might 
endanger the health or safety of other residents of the County, removed by its 
own agents or employees, in which event the cost or expense thereof shall be 
chargeable to and paid by the owners of such property and may be collected by 
the County as taxes are collected.  



 

 
12 

 

Execution of the notice to remove litter shall be in writing and shall be in 
the form set forth in Section 17.2-204 (b) of this ordinance and served by personal 
service, posted service or sent by registered mail. 

Every charge authorized by this section with which the owner of any such 
property shall have been assessed and which remains unpaid shall constitute a 
lien against such property ranking on a parity with liens for unpaid local taxes 
and enforceable in the same manner as provided in Articles 3 (§58.1-3940 et seq) 
and 4 (§ 58.1-3965 et seq) of Chapter 39 of Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended. The County may waive such liens in order to facilitate the sale of the property. 
Such liens may be waived only as to a purchaser who is unrelated by blood or marriage to 
the owner and who has no business association with the owner. All such liens shall 
remain a personal obligation of the owner of the property at the time the liens were 
imposed.  

 A violation of this section shall be subject to a civil penalty, not to exceed 
$50.00 for the first violation, or violations arising from the same set of 
operative facts. The civil penalty subsequent violations not arising from the 
same set of operative facts within 12 months of the first violation shall not 
exceed $200.00. Each business day during which the same violation is found 
to have existed shall constitute a separate offense. In no event shall a series of 
specified violation arising from the same set of operative facts result in civil 
penalties that exceed a total of $3,000.00 in a 12-month period.1  

 In the event three civil penalties have previously been imposed on the 
same defendant for the same or similar violation, not arising from the same 
set of operative facts, within a 24-month period a violation of this subsection 
shall be a Class 3 misdemeanor.2 

D. Litter Receptacles 
1. Use of Receptacles 

a. It shall be unlawful to deposit any item or items except litter in any 
receptacle placed for public use as a depository for littler. Any item or 
items, including litter, which are expressly prohibited from being 
placed in said receptacle by a sign or other writing located on or 

                                                           
1 See §15.2-901 (C) for enabling act authorizing civil penalty by ordinance.   
2 See §15.2-901 (D) for enabling act authorizing Class 3 misdemeanor when three civil penalties have occurred.  



 

 
13 

 

around the receptacle, shall not be placed or deposited in said 
receptacle. 

b. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class 2 
misdemeanor. A second or subsequent offense shall constitute a Class 
1 misdemeanor.  

2. Providing Adequate Litter Receptacles for Businesses 

It shall be the duty of any person owning or operation any commercial 
establishment to provide receptacles adequate to contain the litter generated 
at said establishment. The penalty established for violation of this subsection 
shall be twenty-five ($25.00) dollars for each day of violation. The offender 
shall receive a summons from the enforcement officer for any violation of this 
subsection. The offender may pay the fine in lieu of appearing in court on any 
first offense.  

3. Providing Adequate Litter Receptacles for Residences 
a. All household solid waste shall be contained in receptacles or containers 

which conform to standards established by the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors. 

b. It shall be unlawful for any person to use an old appliance or other 
container deemed unacceptable by the County for trash collection. 

c. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class 3 misdemeanor. 
E. Improper Disposal of Waste 
1. Depositing Improper Waste in Receptacles or Facilities 

a. It shall be unlawful to improperly dispose of any solid waste as 
defined in this Ordinance at a facility operated for or in a receptacle 
placed for public or private use. Improper disposal shall mean and 
include the depositing in such facility of solid waste which is not 
accepted or authorized for disposal by such facility. The types of waste 
not accepted at any such facility shall be displayed at the entrance of 
such facility or on the receptacle. 

F. Enforcement of Litter Laws; Prosecution; Presumption 
1. Enforcement  

a. Prosecution for a violation of any provision of this act may be initiated 
by the County Building Inspector, law enforcement officer, litter 
control officer, or private citizen.  



 

 
14 

 

2. Authorization of County Litter Control Office to Bring Civil Action 
Whereas Section 10.1-1418.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended 
authorizes the County to bring a civil action against any person who 
improperly disposes of solid waste on the property of the County, without 
the County’s permission. Whenever a court of competent jurisdiction finds 
that a person has improperly disposed of solid waste upon the County’s 
property, without the County’s permission, the court shall assess a civil 
penalty of up to five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) against such defendant, 
along with costs and reasonable attorney’s fees. Any civil penalty assessed 
pursuant to this subsection shall be paid into the Russell County treasury.  

3. Assign –A-Highway Roadside and Illegal Dump Cleanup 
For Cleanup of roadside litter and identified illegal dumps within the 
County, it is hereby established a program pursuant to Section 53.1-129 of the 
Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, and the Sheriff of the County and any of 
his deputies and any Special Conservator of the Peace/Litter Office who has 
been approved by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be permitted to 
utilize probationers or remove inmates from the County or Regional Jail 
under their supervision to work in this program providing that any such 
inmate has been specifically approved to be permitted to participate in this 
program by the Sheriff and by the Court. Probationers will be assigned to 
two-mile designated sections of highway, cleaned up every two weeks for the 
duration of their assignment to this program. Inmates shall be utilized only 
for the cleanup for illegal dumps identified by the County Litter Control 
Department. During the cleanup of illegal dumps, the Special Conservator of 
the Peace/Litter Control Officer or the Sheriff or his deputies will be present 
during this volunteer work. 

Sec. 17.2-204. Removal, disposal of trash and garbage.  

(a) The owners of property in the county shall not accumulate thereon and shall 
remove there from any and all trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances 
which might endanger the health or safety of other residents of the county.  

(b) Notice to property owner: 
1) The Board of Supervisors may, when it deems it necessary, give written 

notice to the owner of any property in the county, and to the person 
primarily responsible for such property, if different from the owner and if 



 

 
15 

 

know, stating the facts that constitute a violation of subsection (a) of this 
section and directing such person or persons to take such action as may be 
necessary to rectify the conditions within 14 days from the date of the 
notice.  

2) The notice required by the section shall be certified or registered mail to 
the last known address, or by hand delivery by the Sheriff of the County, 
his deputy, the county sanitation office or the designee of the County 
Administrator, to the owner of the property and to the person primarily 
responsible for such property, if different from the owner and if known, 
The notice shall be substantially in the following form: 

NOTICE TO REMOVE TRASH, GARBAGE, REFUSE, LITTER 
AND OTHER SUBSTANCES 

To: ____________________________ 
Responsible Party 

AT: _________________________ 
  ______________________ 

Address of property 
 

_______________________________ 
Tax Map Number 

 
Pursuant to Code of Virginia §15.2-802 of the Ordinances of Russell County, Virginia, 
you are hereby notified to remove, within 14 days after the date of this notice, all trash, 
garbage, refuse, litter and other substances that endanger the health or safety of other 
residents of the county, in particular (describe the conditions). Upon your failure to 
remove the same, the county’s agents or employees may remove such trash, garbage, 
refuse, litter and other substances that endanger the health or safety of other residents 
of the county, and the cost and expenses of such removal shall be chargeable to and 
paid by the owner of such property and may be collected by the county as taxes and 
levies are collected and shall constitute a lien on the property. 
 
 

(c) If the property is not cleaned up after receiving the notice required in subsection 
(b) of this section, the Board of Supervisors may have such trash, garbage, refuse, 
litter and other like substances that might endanger the health of other residents 
of the county removed by the county’s own agents and employees, in which 
event the cost and expenses thereof shall be chargeable to and paid by the 



 

 
16 

 

owners of such property and may be collected by the county as taxes and levies 
are collected.  

(d) Every charge authorized by this section with which the owner and lien holder of 
any such property shall have been assessed and which remains unpaid shall 
constitute a lien against such property ranking on a parity with lien for unpaid 
local taxes and enforceable in the same manner as provided in Code of Virginia, 
§§ 58.1-3940 et seq. and 58.1-3965 et seq. 

(e) Trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other debris shall be disposed of in personally 
owned or privately owned receptacles that are provided for such use and for the 
use of the persons and disposing such matter or in authorized facilities provided 
for such purpose, and in no other manner not authorized by law.  

§ 17.2-205. Dumping Trash on Highway, Right-Of-Way or Private Property. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to dump or otherwise dispose of trash, 
garbage, refuse, litter or other unsightly matter, on public property, including a 
public highway, right-of-way, property adjacent to such highway or right-of-
way, or on private property without the written consent of the owner thereof or 
his agent. 

(b) When any persons is arrested for a violation of this section, and the matter 
alleged to have been illegally dumped or disposed of has been ejected from a 
motor vehicle or transported to the disposal site in a motor vehicle, the arresting 
officer may comply with the provisions of Code of Virginia, §46.2-936, in making 
such arrest. 

(c) When a violation of the provisions of this section has been observed by any 
person, and the matter illegally dumped or disposed of has been ejected or 
removed from a motor vehicle, the owner or operator of such motor vehicle shall 
be presumed to be the person ejecting or disposing of such matter. However, 
such presumption shall be rebuttable by competent evidence.  

(d) Any person who violates this section shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a Class 1 
misdemeanor punishable by confinement in jail for not more than twelve (12) 
months and a fine of not less than $250.00 nor more than $2,500.00, either or both.  

(e) The provisions of this section shall not apply to the lawful disposal of such 
matter in landfills, the county transfer station or county convenience stations. 

(f) The Commonwealth Attorney of Russell County, Virginia or his designee shall 
be responsible for all prosecutions under this section. 



 

 
17 

 

§17.2-206. Penalties. 

 The authorized punishments for a conviction of a misdemeanor are:  

(a) For Class 1 misdemeanors, confinement in jail for not more than twelve months 
and a fine of not more than $2,500.00, either or both. 

(b) For Class 2 misdemeanors, confinement in jail for not more than six months and 
fine of not more than $1,000.00, either or both.  

(c) For Class 3 misdemeanors, a fine of not more than $500.00. 
(d) For Class 4 misdemeanors, a fine of not more than $250.00. 

§17.2-207. Effective Date of Ordinance. 

 This ordinance shall be effective on the ____ day of ___________, 2018. The 
County Administrator is directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance in the Offices 
of the Clerk of the General District Court of Russell County and the Clerk of the Circuit 
Court of Russell County. 

 

Adopted this the _____ day of __________, 2018. 

  

  

 



By Laws 
Russell County  
• Adopted May 5, 2014 
 
Article I 
Russell County Board of Supervisors, Officers & Their Selection 
A. There shall be seven (7) members of the Board of Supervisors, six (6) elected 
for four-year terms by citizen vote of each of the six (6) Districts of Russell County 
and one (1) member elected at-large by the entire County for four years. 
 
B. The Officers of the Board of Supervisors shall consist of a Chairman and Vice Chairman, 
each of whom shall serve for a term of one (1) calendar year.  
 
C. Nomination of Officers shall be made from the Board at the first meeting of each calendar 
year.  Election of Officers shall follow immediately. 

D.  A standing Budget/Finance Committee shall be appointed by the newly elected Board 
Chairman.  This committee shall consist of two (2) Board members and two (2) staff 
members.  
 
Article II 
Duties of Officers 
A. The Chairman shall:  
(1) Preside at all meetings;  
(2) Work closely with the County Administrator on day to day matters, approve appropriate 
financial documents, and approve the agenda for all meetings; 
(3) Carry out such other duties as assigned by the Board.  
 
B. The Vice-Chairman shall act in the absence or inability of the Chairman to act. 
 
C. The Budget/Finance Committee shall be responsible for preparation of the annual County 
budget and for presentation during a regular or special Board meeting before a vote is taken 
on the Budget each year.  Other financial matters shall be considered by this committee 
before presentation to the full Board.  
 
Article III 
Agenda Preparation Policy 
A. The County Administrator shall prepare an agenda for each regular meeting of the Board 
of Supervisors. Supervisors, staff, and others may submit to the County Administrator items 
for the agenda at any time prior to Noon Wednesday of the week preceding the regular 
meeting to which such item relates. Emergency items will be added as an amendment to 
the agenda.  
 
B. Copies of the agenda shall be made available electronically for each Supervisor by close 
of business on Tuesday prior to the Board meeting and an agenda complete with a packet of 
materials for the Board members  and News Media serving the County and the public not 
later than close of business on Thursday preceding the meeting to which it relates.  
 



Article IV 
Meetings 
A. The time and place of Board Meetings shall be set from time to time by resolution of the 
Board in conformance with State Law. The regular meeting schedule shall be set at the 
organizational meeting held in January each year.  
 
B. Minutes from the previous meeting shall be delivered to the Board members with the 
agenda prior to the next meeting. Unless requested by a Board member, the minutes will 
not be read and will be approved upon motion and vote of the Board.  
 
C. Order of Business 
(1) Commencement of Meetings:  
At the time established in accordance with Article IV (A) of these By-Laws for the 
commencement of regular meetings or at the hour specified for continued or special 
meetings, the Chairman shall call the meeting to order and shall direct the clerk to note the 
absence of any Board members by roll call. A quorum shall be required for commencement 
of any meeting.  
 
(2) Agenda:  
An agenda shall be prepared by the County Administrator in accordance with Article III 
under these By-laws. The proposed agenda shall be adopted by the Board at each meeting. 
The agenda will include under New Business “Reports from Designated Standing 
Committees”. Should the chairman or any member of the Board have a matter which he or 
she feels needs to be brought to the attention of the Board but which is not on the agenda, 
or if there is an amendment to the order of the agenda, he or she may make a motion that 
an addition or amendment be made to the agenda. Such amended agenda must be 
approved by a majority of the Board members present. 

D. Presentations: 
Matters to be presented to the Board may be arranged by persons prior to the meetings and 
placed on the Agenda.  The County Administrator must be notified by Wednesday of the 
week prior to the Board meeting.  Any materials to be used for the presentation must be 
provided and included in agenda packet.  Additional materials presented at the Board 
meeting must be approved by the Chairman prior to dissemination.  These presentations 
are strongly encouraged to be limited to five (5) minutes and when four (4) minutes has 
elapsed, the Chairman may instruct the speaker that one (1) minute is remaining.  
 
E. Quorum & Method of Voting 
A majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors shall constitute a quorum of the 
Board. All questions submitted to the Board for decision shall be determined by voice vote 
of a majority of the supervisors voting on any such questions, unless otherwise provided by 
law. The name of each member voting and how he or she voted must be recorded.  Roll Call 
votes may be requested by any Board member.  
 
F. Procedure for Roll Call of Board Members 
(1) The Members of the Board of Supervisors shall cast votes in district order on a rotating 
basis per meeting.  
(2) The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors shall cast the last vote. 
(3) The Chairman/Clerk shall restate all motions before a vote is taken and the result of the 



vote shall be announced following each vote.  
 
G. General Rules of Procedure 
The Board’s Parliamentary Procedures shall be Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 11th 
edition, specifically to include Section 49, Conduct of Business in Boards, pages 486 – 488, 
in all matters not covered by the Board’s bylaws, to the extent compatible with law and the 
historical practices of the Board. The County Attorney, or his or her designee, shall act as 
Parliamentarian to the Board. Any questions involving the interpretation or application of 
Robert’s Rules shall be addressed to the County Attorney. The Board may amend, by 
Resolution, the rules as it deems appropriate. The following rules shall apply:  
 
(1) Members are not required to obtain the floor before making motions or speaking, which 
they can do while seated.  
 
(2) All motions require a second except for nominations for appointments to other boards, 
authorities or commissions. 
 
(3) There is no limit to the number of times a member can speak to a question, and motions 
to close or limit debate generally should not be entertained.    
 
(4) Informal discussion of a subject is permitted while no motion is pending.  
 
(5) The Chairman can speak in discussion without leaving the chair, can vote on all 
questions, but cannot make motions unless by consent of a majority of Board members 
present.  
 
(6) No Board member is required to vote on any issue. If any Board member determines, 
prior to the calling of any issue before the Board, that he, because of conflict or otherwise, 
will abstain from voting on such issue, he shall announce such intention at the time the 
issue comes before the Board and shall not participate in the discussion on such issue or 
question. An abstention shall be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum. An 
abstention defeats a motion requiring a unanimous vote.  
 
(7) In the incidence of a tie vote, the issue voted upon by the Board is dead and therefore 
voted down. 
 
(8) If a primary or substitute motion is made at a Board meeting where at least six (6) 
members are present and the motion is voted on and fails, the same or a substantively 
similar motion cannot be reconsidered by the Board within the following twelve (12) months 
except by a primary or substitute motion made by a member of the Board who voted on the 
prevailing side where there are no less than six (6) Board members present, and only if 
two-thirds (2/3) of the Board members present vote to reconsider the action previously 
decided. 
 
(9) Only Board members and the Parliamentarian shall have standing to raise 
noncompliance with these General Rules of Procedure, and only during the current meeting 
at the time of violation. Failure of the Board to comply with these General Rules of 
Procedure shall not invalidate any action taken by the Board.  
 
H. Member Absenting Himself from Meeting Prior to Adjournment 
After the name of any member of the Board has been recorded as present at any meeting of 
the Board, he shall not absent himself from the remainder of the meeting prior to 
adjournment unless by consent of the Board.  



 
I. Board to Sit with Open Doors 
The Board of Supervisors shall sit with open doors and all persons conducting themselves in 
an orderly manner may attend the meetings; however, the Board may hold closed sessions 
as permitted by law and when deemed necessary by a majority vote of the Board.  
 
A consent agenda shall be introduced by a motion “to approve” by any Board member, and 
shall be considered by the Board as a single item. There shall be no debate or discussion by 
any member of the Board regarding any item on the consent agenda. The Clerk or his/her 
designee shall provide a brief written summary or memo on each item included in the 
consent agenda. Upon request of any Board member who wishes to question or discuss an 
item, that item shall be removed from the Consent Agenda. This item shall be transferred 
onto the agenda for consideration.  
 
J. Citizens Comment Period  
Rules for Citizen Comment Period 
To ensure that the affairs of the Board and its committees may be conducted in an orderly 
manner, to ensure that all persons desiring to address the Board on matters pertinent to it 
are afforded an opportunity to do so, to permit persons in attendance to observe and hear 
the proceedings of the Board without distraction, and to permit to the fullest extent the 
Board to conduct County business with minimal disruption, the following rules are 
established.  
 
(1) Each person desiring to speak during the Citizens’ Comment period on the agenda must 
provide name and address prior to their comments.  
 
(2) Each speaker  is strongly encouraged to limit remarks to a period of three (3) minutes 
per comment period; when two (2) minutes have passed the speaker  may be reminded 
that there is one (1) minute remaining.  
 
(3) Speakers may not donate their time to other speakers.  
 
(4) Speakers will not be permitted to use audiovisual materials or other visual displays, but 
may present written and photographic materials to the Board members.  
 
(5) Comments must be confined to matters germane to the business of the Board of 
Supervisors and shall not be cumulative or repetitive.  
 
(6) Speakers should address the Board with decorum – loud, boisterous, and disruptive 
behavior, obscenity, and vulgarity should be avoided as well as other words or acts tending 
to evoke violence or deemed to be a breach of the peace.  
 
(7) The Citizens’ Comment period is not intended to be a question and answer period or 
time for dialogue with County officials. Questions which are raised during a comment period 
may at the discretion of the Board be responded to by County officials after sufficient time 
for appropriate investigation.  
 
(8) Speakers shall remain at the podium while addressing the Board.  
 
(9) Speakers shall not be interrupted by audience comments, calls/whistles, laughter, or 
other gestures. Individuals in the audience who do not abide by this policy after a warning 
will be asked to leave the meeting.  
 



(10) Expressive activities including, but not limited to, petitioning, picketing, displaying 
signs and posters, solicitation, demonstrating, pamphlet distribution, and conducting polls 
shall not be permitted within the Governmental Center Building or in any other building that 
the Board is meeting.  
 
These rules do not preclude persons from delivering to the Board or its Clerk written 
materials including reports, statements, exhibits, letters, or signed petitions or to prohibit 
persons from presenting oral or written comments on any subject germane to the business 
of the Board to individual Board members or to the Board through its Clerk outside the 
context of the public meeting.  
 
K. Agenda Item Procedure 
The following guidelines shall be followed for comment addressed to specific agenda items:  
 
(1) In order to prevent obvious questions from consuming Board Meeting time, the 
Chairman and/or designated person(s) will advise the speaker if a matter is to be 
considered during some other time during the meeting. 
 
Article V  
Procedure for Dealing with Items Not on the Agenda 
A. All matters not on the agenda must be raised during citizens comment period. Any 
matter not on the agenda shall not be considered unless approved for consideration by the 
majority of the Board present in accordance with Article IV, C (2).  
 
B. For any special meeting, the business to be discussed shall be stated in the call for such 
meeting. The Chairman or Administrator shall prepare a written agenda listing all items to 
be considered for every special meeting. No other business shall be discussed or acted upon 
unless approved for consideration by the majority of the Board present in accordance with 
Article IV, C (2).  
 
Article VI 
Public Hearings 
A. All public hearings will be advertised in accordance with the Virginia Code. Public hearings 
may be postponed, continued or canceled at the discretion of the Board.  
 
B. In addition to those required by law, the Board at its discretion may hold public hearings 
when it decides that a hearing will be in the public interest.  
 
C. The case before the Board shall be summarized by the Chairman or designated 
person(s). If there is expected to be many speakers on the issue, interested parties wishing 
to speak must sign the register at the rear of the room prior to the start of the hearing. 
Each person wishing to speak will be called to the podium by the Chairman or designated 
person(s) in the order such person signed the register and must state his or her name and 
address for the record. Generally, each citizen should be provided an opportunity to speak.  
Each speaker shall be limited to three (3) minutes, unless waived by the Board.  
 
D. Board Members shall limit their comments in public hearings to insure participation by 
the public without Board interference. 



 
Article VII 
Appointment of Committees 
Appointments to committees of the Board may be made by the Chairman.  Appointments to 
other authorities, boards, and commissions, shall be made only by member motion adopted 
by a majority of the full Board. Prior to consideration of the nomination, the nominee shall 
be notified to determine his or her willingness to serve and to determine if he or she meets 
the qualifications for such appointment.  
 
Article VIII 
Duties of the County Administrator 
The County Administrator shall:  
 
A. Prepare the agenda for each meeting for approval in conformance with the agenda 
preparation procedure outlined in these bylaws.  
 
B. Keep a written record of all business transacted by the Board.  
 
C. Administer the financial control procedures of the County.  
 
D. Advise and inform the Board on all matters affecting County government.  
 
E. Execute all formal documents authorized by the Board of Supervisors.  
 
F. Provide and supervise all staff services directly under the control of the Board of 
Supervisors.  
 
G. The County Administrator shall be responsible for all personnel management of the 
County. Department Directors, Coordinators, Supervisors or Managers will be hired and 
dismissed with the consent of a majority of the Board of Supervisors.  
 
H. Prepare an annual operating budget for the County government in accordance with 
guidelines established by the State auditor’s office for approval by the Board of Supervisors. 
He shall be responsible for maintaining adequate financial and accounting records on all 
County business under his control.  
 
I. Serve as the Board’s representative in all circumstances where the Chairman, Vice 
Chairman, or a majority of the Board Members are not available.  
 
J. Perform all other duties delegated by the Board as required by law.  

Article IX 
Amendments 
A. The Bylaws may be amended by a recorded majority vote of the entire membership of 
the Board provided that written notice has been given to all members of the Board and a 
copy of the proposed amendment is sent with the notice, prior to said meeting.  



 
B. The Bylaws may be suspended in whole or in part only upon the unanimous vote of Board 
members present, relating to any matter before it. 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1 – D-7 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 2/4/19            6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for February 2019: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. 2019 Rural Caucus & VACo County Government Day………..………………….D-1 

 
2. CPRWMA FY18 Financial Audit………………………………………………………D-2 

 
3. CIFA/VDOT/SVCC Smart Scale Training…………………………………………….D-3 

 
4. Elk Garden School………………………………………………………………………D-4 

 
5. Swords Creek Community Center……………………………………………………D-5 

 
          REQUESTS 

  
6. Authorization to Award County’s IT Service Contract. ……………….………....D-6 

 
7. Authorization of Travel Requests…….………………………………………………D-7 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


City    State                      Zip Code 

*** Registration deadline is January 18, 2019 *** 
 

VACo and the Center for Rural Virginia 

2019 Rural Caucus Reception 

Wednesday, January 30th | Omni Richmond Hotel | 5:30 to 8:00 pm 
 
                                         REGISTRATION FORM                                     *** Registration closes January 18 *** 
                                          $60 per person     Room block at the Omni Richmond closes January 11 

The 2019 Rural Caucus Reception is an evening of collaboration and discussion on the issues that impact rural 
Virginia. Attendees acquire a healthy understanding of matters affecting rural Virginia and their possible solutions as 
well as make personal connections across the region. Registration fee includes two drink tickets; heavy hors 
d'oeuvres will be served. 
       
        Name ____________________________________ Title ________________________________________ 
  

Name ____________________________________ Title ________________________________________ 
  
Name ____________________________________ Title ________________________________________ 
   
County or Organization __________________________________________________________________  

Mailing address ________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________  _______________  ___________________  

Contact Phone _______________________________   Email ___________________________________  

My guest’s name is _______________________________________________ (Add $60)  
Leave blank if no guest. 

Total enclosed __________________ ($60 per person) 
Make checks payable to: Virginia Association of Counties or VACo. 

CHARGE:   ______VISA     ______ American Express  ______ MasterCard      ______ Discover 
 
Card number_____________________________________________________   Expiration date ________   _______ 
                     MONTH           YEAR 
Print cardholder’s name as it appears on the card ______________________________________________________ 

Authorized Signature ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Email for credit card receipt if different from above ______________________________________________________ 

Register today by faxing this completed form with credit card information to 804.788.0083 or mail with a check to: Virginia 
Association of Counties, 1207 East Main Street, Suite 300, Richmond, VA  23219. 

Hotel Information  
Officials can stay overnight at the Omni Richmond Hotel with special rates from $147. For reservations, call 
1.800.THE.OMNI by January 11, 2019 with the following code: VACo County Government Day or make reservations online at this 
Omni Richmond Hotel link. 

Refund Policy  
Requests for registration refunds are honored if received by 10 a.m. on January 18, 2019. However, substitutions are accepted at any 
time. For questions, please call VACo at 804.788.6652.  

https://www.omnihotels.com/hotels/richmond/meetings/vaco-county-government-day-2019
https://www.omnihotels.com/hotels/richmond/meetings/vaco-county-government-day-2019






























Cumberland Industrial Facilities Authority 
(Counties of Buchanan, Tazewell, and Russell) 

 
 

 
 

Local Legislators                                                                                                                                                                           
Board of Supervisors                                                                                                                                                   
Planning Districts & Commissions                                                                                                                              
Industrial Development Authorities 

The Cumberland Industrial Facilities Authority (CFIA), Southwest Virginia Community College (SWCC), 
and Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) is hosting a training session on the SMART SCALE 
application process and Smart Portal scheduled for Tuesday, February 12, 2019 from 8 a.m.- 5 p.m. at 
the SWCC Campus Auditorium.   

This training will be led by the SMART SCALE team and targeted towards each County’s SMART PORTAL 
organizational administrator and jurisdiction staff working on SMART SCALE applications.  The purpose 
of SMART SCALE is to fund the right transportation projects through a prioritization process that 
evaluates each project’s merits using key factors, including: safety improvements, congestion reduction, 
accessibility, land use, economic development and the environment. The evaluation focuses on the 
degree to which a project addresses a problem or need relative to the requested funding for the project. 

Please plan to attend and invite your staff as appropriate.  For planning purposes, please email the list of 
attendees from your organization by February 8th, 2019 to Lonzo.Lester@russellcountyva.us.    

mailto:Lonzo.Lester








 

 

Information Technology (IT)  

Comparison Cost Analysis  

IT Contract vs. IT Employee 

ANNUAL COST FOR IT SERVICES  

 

Technician Hourly Rates 

     INNOVATIVE   WIZE    

TECHNICIAN                                                                                                                                                          

Hourly Rate/Annual   $  58.00/$58,000 $ 198.00/$198,000  

 

IT Contract vs. IT Employee: 

INNOVATIVE 

$58,000 PER YEAR 

County Employee (w/Benefits): 

$75,000 salary & benefits $29,587 = $104,587 



   
 

                 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
FOR 

      INFORMATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (IT) SERVICES  
 
 
 

SOLICITATION NUMBER: RFP RC-0003 

TITLE: IT Services Contract 

RFP CLOSING DATE/TIME: December 7, 2018 at 3:00 p.m.  (EST) 

In compliance with this RFP and to all the conditions imposed therein and hereby incorporated 
by reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the services in accordance with the 
attached signed proposal or as mutually agreed upon by subsequent negotiation. 

 
  

Company Name 
 
    

Authorized Signature Date Name Printed 
 
   

Phone Number Fax Number 
  
 

Note: Russell County does not discriminate against faith-based organizations in accordance with 
the Code of Virginia § 2.2-4343.1 or against an Offeror because of race, religion, color, sex, 
national origin, age, disability, or any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination 
in employment. 



   
 

RFP SUBMISSION FORM 
 

Name of RFP: IT Services Contract 

RFP Number: RFP RC-0003 

Closing Date/Time: December 7, 2018 at 3:00 p.m.  (EST) 
 

SECTION I - COMPANY IDENTIFICATION AND OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE 
 

Company:    Contact Person:     
 

    Title:    
 

Address:    Telephone No:      
 
 

Remittanc
e 

    FAX No:    

Address:    Email:    
 

Indicate Which: Corporation [  ] Partnership [  ] Sole Prop. [ ] 

Minority Owned/Controlled Bus. Yes [  ] No [  ] Small Bus. Yes [  ] No [ ] 
 
 

Organized under the laws of the State of    

Principal place of business at    

FEIN:    
 

Following are the names and address of all persons having an ownership interest of 3% or more 
in the Company: (Attach more sheets if necessary) 

 
  

Name 
 
  

Address 
 
  
 
  



 

 
SECTION II - CONFLICT OF INTERESTS 
This solicitation is subject to the provisions of Section 2.2-3100 et. seq., Virginia Code Annotated and the 
State and Local Government Conflict of Interests Act. 

 
The Offeror [ ] is [ ] is not aware of any information bearing on the existence of any potential 
organizational conflict of interest. 

 
SECTION III – COLLUSION 
I certify that this submission is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any 
corporation, firm, or person submitting an offer for the same services, materials, supplies, or equipment, and 
is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. I understand collusive bidding is a violation of the State 
and Federal law and may result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards. 

 
I hereby certify that the responses to the above representations, certifications, and other statements are 
accurate and complete. I agree to abide by all conditions of this RFP and certify that I am authorized to 
sign for the Offeror. 

 
 

   
Signature  Date 

   

Name (Printed)  Title 
 
OFFEROR MUST COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM WITH ITS PROPOSAL PACKAGE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

PURPOSE 
Russell County seeks a qualified contractor to provide Informational Technology Services for its governmental 
facilities.  Russell County desires to establish a three-year service contract, with option of two re-negotiated “one-
year extensions” for informational technology services for the County’s non-school related IT systems and 
equipment.   
 
The primary purpose of the RFP for Russell County IT services is to ensure system maintenance service of all 
County’s non-school related IT systems on a timely and consistent basis. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
1. Services 

 
a)  Contractor agrees to perform to the County’s satisfaction the technical services set forth in the attached 

“Specification of Services” (“Services”) with the standard of care and skill customarily provided in the 
industry for performance of such services, and to devote such amount of its business during the Term as 
is necessary to fulfill all of its duties and obligations hereunder. 

 
b)  Contractor agrees that should County determine, in its sole discretion, that any of Contractor’s agents or 

employees has been unable to discharge duties for any cause or has failed or refused to perform Services 
under this Agreement in a manner satisfactory to County, then County shall notify Contractor in writing of 
such opinion. Contractor shall immediately substitute the agent or employee with a replacement 
acceptable to County. 

 
A description of various IT Scope of Services under consideration is attached to this document as Appendix 
1.  Location of Services to be provided is attached as Appendix 2. 

 
2. Payment for Services 

 
a)  In full consideration for the Services, County shall pay Contractor a fee of $___ ____per annum payable 

in equal monthly installments in accordance with the rates and guidelines set forth in the attached 
“Specification of Compensation.” 

 
b)   Contractor shall issue a monthly invoice to the County detailing all work performed during the previous 

month.  County shall pay these monthly invoices within 30 days of receipt. 
 

c)  On notice to Contractor, County may withhold payments for unsatisfactory performance results and/or 
question any item reflected on Contractor's invoice. Pending settlement or resolution of the issue, 
County’s nonpayment shall not constitute a default of this Agreement. County shall pay all invoiced 
amounts not in dispute. 

 
d)   County must consent in writing prior to Contractor’s working in excess of the maximum work values set 

forth in the attached Specifications. 
 

3. Contractor’s Capacity and Responsibilities 
 

a) It is expressly understood that Contractor shall perform the Services as an independent contractor and is 
not an agent, associate, partner, joint venture or employee of the County.  Contractor agrees that the 
manner in which it performs its obligations under this Agreement is solely within its direction and control 
subject to the terms and conditions of the attached Specifications, and that it is not entitled to tax 
withholding, Worker’s Compensation, unemployment compensation or any employee benefits, statutory or 
otherwise. 

 
b) Contractor understands and agrees that its employees, agents and representatives will not be treated as 

employees of the County for any purpose and are not entitled to receive pension or other retirement 
benefits, medical, dental, severance, leaves of absence, sick leave, death, disability, vacations, tuition 
assistance or any other County benefit. 

 



 

 
c)   Contractor shall not have the authority to enter into any contract or agreement to bind County and shall 

     not represent to third parties that Contractor has such authority. 
 

d)   Contractor represents and warrants that it has / its personnel have or will obtain and maintain all 
necessary licenses, permissions, certifications, authorizations, registrations and approvals required for the 
provision of Services under this Agreement; that all Services included in the Specifications shall be 
performed in a professional manner by qualified personnel in accordance with recognized industry 
standards, and that all projects will be timely completed, even if doing so requires Contractor to work 
evenings and weekends. 

 
4. Confidentiality of Information 

 
a)   Contractor acknowledges and agrees to make best efforts to maintain in a secure fashion the 

confidentiality of any tangible or intangible information revealed, obtained or developed during the course 
of or in connection with the performance of the Services, including without limitation any information (in 
whatever media) contained in any staff or health, personnel record, or about the operations, programs, 
finances, administration, or any other information or data about which Contractor becomes aware which is 
or may be a confidential and proprietary nature ("Confidential Information”). 

 
b)   Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it shall treat all Confidential Information with the strictest 

confidence and secrecy and shall not disclose any Confidential Information to any third party, or use 
Confidential Information for Contractor's own purposes or other than for the benefit of County in 
performing the Services under this Agreement, during the term of this Agreement and at all times, without 
the prior written consent of County. Contractor also agrees that any dissemination of Confidential 
Information within its own business operation shall be restricted to "a need to know basis" for the purpose 
of performing the Services hereunder. 

 
c)  This provision shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. All notes, memoranda, records 

and writings consisting of any Confidential Information or made by Contractor relative to the business of 
County shall be and remain the property of County and shall be destroyed or handed over to County on 
demand and in any event on the termination of this Agreement. 

 
5. Property Rights 

 
a)   Contractor agrees that all work product, tangible or intangible, including any image, computer program, 

report, document, data, copyrightable work, invention, improvement, discovery, design or other intellectual 
property right conceived, created or developed by Contractor, solely or with others, related to the 
performance of Services under this Agreement, and all copies of any of the foregoing (“Deliverables”), are 
the sole, exclusive and absolute property of County and shall be disclosed thereto, it being intended that 
such Deliverables shall be deemed „works made for hire‟. Contractor agrees to assign all rights therein to 
County. 

 
6. Assignment 

 
Contractor may not assign, transfer, subcontract, delegate or otherwise dispose of its interest or delegate 
any part of its duties hereunder without the prior written consent of County. No such assignment shall 
relieve Contractor from liability with respect to any of its obligations or liabilities hereunder.  This 
Agreement shall be binding on any assigns. 
 

7. Compliance with Laws 
 

Contractor agrees to comply at its expense with all applicable federal, state, county and local laws, 
ordinances, regulations and codes in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including but 
not limited to the procurement of licenses, permits and certificates where required. 

 
 



 

Contractor warrants to County that it has full legal right to enter this Agreement and that neither the 
Services to be performed nor any work product (Deliverable) to be provided will violate any agreement or 
infringe the rights of any third party, including any contract right, patent, copyright, or other property right. 

 
8. Insurance 

 
Consultant will secure, purchase and maintain, at its own expense, the following insurance policies in full 
force and effect during all periods of Service covered by this Agreement: 

 
Statutory workers compensation covering the Service will be performed, disability benefits and employer's 
liability coverage in amounts not less than $500,000 per accident or disease. 

 
Commercial general liability insurance with limits of $500,000 per occurrence, bodily injury and property 
damage $500,000 per occurrence. This policy shall be written on an “occurrence” basis, shall apply on a 
primary basis irrespective of any other insurance, whether collectible or not. 

 
Each insurance policy described above shall be endorsed to name Russell County Virginia as an 
“Additional Insured” for all activities covered by this Agreement. The definition of Additional 
Insured shall include all of County’s trustees, officers, employees, agents and representatives. 
Further, coverage for the Additional Insureds shall apply on a primary basis irrespective of any 
other insurance, whether collectible or not. 

 
Contractor will, at least ten (10) days before the initial period of Services undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement, and prior to any expiration or anniversary of the respective policy terms, deposit the certificates 
of insurance evidencing compliance with all insurance provisions noted above. Contractor accepts that 
failure to provide adequate or proper certification of insurance, specifically including County as “Additional 
Insured”, shall immediately be deemed a breach of contract. 

 
It is further agreed that Contractor will require all subcontractors and others acting under its direction or 
control in performing the Services to: (a) execute an insurance and indemnification agreement in favor of 
County with the Indemnifying Parties agreeing to the same terms and conditions as is contained herein, (b) 
maintain the same insurance coverage set forth herein, and (c) provide certificates of insurance evidencing 
the required coverage and naming County as “Additional Insured.” 

 
Indemnification 

 
Contractor shall, at its own expense, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, 
employees, representatives and agents, from and against any loss, liability, damages, costs or expenses 
(including attorney’s fees) of any nature whatsoever arising from any claim or action, including any claim or 
action against County for infringement of any patent, copyright, trade secret or other intellectual property, 
related to Contractor’s provision of the Services contemplated by this Agreement or breach of any  
obligation, representation or warranty set forth herein. Contractor shall have the right to conduct the 
defense of any such claim or action and all negotiations for its settlement.  County may participate in any 
such defense or negotiations to protect its interest. 

 
9. Breach of Agreement; Termination 

 
a) Any of the following events shall be deemed an event of default: 

 
(i) Contractor does not fulfill its obligations to [maintain and install software/equipment] in accordance 

with the Specification of Services; 
 

b) In any case where Contractor has failed to perform or has delivered non-conforming goods or services, 
County may deliver a “Notice to Cure” to Contractor, detailing the instances of noncompliance. Contractor 
shall have 10 days to reply and recommend remedial action.  If Contractor and County agree, Contractor 
shall have 30 days after receipt of the Notice to cure the noncompliance. If a solution cannot be reached 
within 10 days after Contractor’s receipt of the Notice, County may terminate this Agreement. 

 



 

c)  The County may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at its convenience, on no less than thirty 30 
days’ written notice to Contractor. 

 
d)  On any termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall stop work, terminate all subcontracts and deliver to 

County all Confidential Information, County property, works for hire and such work in process as the 
County may request. County shall have no liability to Contractor beyond payment for Services rendered to 
and accepted by County prior to the effective date of the termination.  Contractor may recover actual 
cancellation costs incurred before the effective date of termination if Contractor submits a claim for such 
costs, supported by third party invoices, to County within thirty (30) days of receipt of the termination 
notice.  The remedies provided herein with respect to any termination are exclusive and in lieu of any 
other remedies available at law or equity. 

 
e)  Any cancellation or termination by County, whether for default or otherwise, shall be without prejudice to 

any claims or damages or other rights of County against Contractor. If any fees or expenses have been 
prepaid by County, Contractor shall refund a pro rata portion of such fees or expenses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
SPECIFICATION OF COMPENSATION 

 
I. COST ESTIMATE STATEMENT 

 
Contractor shall prepare and submit to County for approval the Specification of Services statement annexed 
hereto. The Specification of Services statement shall include: 
 

(i) Description of the overall services to be performed, 
(ii) Estimated costs, 
(iii) Names and billing rates of the individuals. 

 
II. MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING RESPONSIBILITY 

 
The Contractor and County Administrator will review the progress of the work each month. 
 

III. GENERAL BUSINESS CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
Bid proposals will be evaluated on several criteria deemed to be in the best interests of Russell County, including, 
but not limited to, contract price, experience level of employees, company business profile, and ability to meet 
specific IT needs as detailed in Appendix 1 on a timely and consistent basis. 
 
Considerations for the informational technology services of this RFP includes, but not limited to, the following: 
 

1. Bidder business profile, including bidder company history, length of time in business, number and 
qualifications of IT service technicians, at both a senior and apprentice level. 

2. Capability to provide routine IT services on a timely and auditable basis. 
3. Ability to service the entire range of vendors and unit types to be found in the County’s base of installed 

equipment. 
4. Availability of trained and experienced service technicians and helpers. 
5. Price for delivery of services for the contract period described in the RFP.   

 
ISSUING OFFICE 
 
The Russell County Administrator is the issuing officer for this Request for Proposals (RFP) and the point of 
contact for questions. 
 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
P.O. Box 1207, Lebanon, VA 24266 
Phone: (276) 889-8000 
E-mail: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 
 
 ANTICIPATED RFP SCHEDULE 
 
Issuance of RFP Documents 

 
 
November 20, 2018 

 Deadline for Proposal Submission Offeror 
Interviews  
Notice of Intent to Award Commencement of 
Contract 

December 7, 2018 
December 19, 2018 
January 7, 2019 
February 1, 2019 
 
 
 
 

mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us


 

   

Each offeror must provide three (3) printed copies of the proposal; one printed copy should be marked “Original.”  
The outside of the sealed envelope or box containing the proposals should be marked with the offeror’s name and 
clearly labeled “Russell County IT Services Contract” before delivering to the Issuing Office. In order to be 
considered, all proposals must be physically received by the Issuing Office before 3:00 p.m., EST, on December 7, 
2018. 
 
Proposals should be delivered to: 
 

 
 
Telephone, facsimile or electronically transmitted proposals will not be accepted. Proposals received after 
the specified closing time will not be given further consideration. 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
The County reserves the right to request services in addition to those specified or implied by this Request for 
Proposal (RFP), that are within the scope of services normally performed by the Offeror, at any time during the 
term of the resulting contract. 
 
PROPOSAL PREPARATION 
 
An authorized representative of the Offeror shall sign the proposal.  All information requested should be submitted.  
Failure to submit all information requested may result in the Russell County requiring prompt submission of 
missing information and/or giving lowered evaluation of the proposal.  Proposals which are substantially 
incomplete or lacking key information may be rejected by Russell County. Mandatory requirements are those 
required by law or regulation or are such that they cannot be waived and are not subject to negotiation. 
 
Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise description of 
capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the RFP. Emphasis should be placed on completeness and clarity of 
content.  The offeror’s proposal should provide all the information that it considers pertinent to its qualifications for 
the project and which respond to the Scope of Services described. 
 
Each copy of the proposal should be bound or contained in a single volume where practical.  All documents 
submitted with the proposal should be contained in that single volume. 
 
Ownership of all data, materials and documentation originated and prepared for Russell County pursuant to the 
RFP will belong exclusively to Russell County and be subject to public inspection in accordance with the Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by an offeror shall not be 
subject to public disclosure under the Virginia FOIA; however, the Offeror must invoke the protections of Section 
2.2-4342(D) of the Code of Virginia, in writing, either before or at the time the data or other material is submitted.  
Offerors must specifically identify the data or materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is 
necessary.  Russell County reserves the right to ask for additional clarification prior to establishing protection. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
 
This contract will be awarded utilizing the process of competitive negotiation as prescribed in § 2,2-4302.2 (A) (4), 
Code of Virginia. 
 
A proposal evaluation committee shall engage in individual discussions with two or more offerors deemed fully 
qualified, responsible and suitable based on initial responses and with emphasis on professional competence, to 
provide the required services. Repetitive informal interviews may be utilized.  At the conclusion of these 

If by USPS mail: 
 
Russell County 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
P.O. Box 1207 
Lebanon, VA 242466 

If by overnight courier: 
 
Russell County 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator  
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, VA 24266 



 

discussions, based on evaluation factors published in this Request for Proposal and all information developed in 
the selection process to this point, the proposal evaluation committee shall select in the order of preference two or 
more offerors whose professional qualifications and proposed services are deemed most meritorious. 
 
Negotiations shall then be conducted, beginning with the offeror ranked first. If a contract satisfactory and 
advantageous to the public body can be negotiated at a price considered fair and reasonable and pursuant to 
contractual terms and conditions acceptable to the evaluation committee, an award shall be made to that offeror. 
Otherwise, negotiations with the offeror ranked first shall be formally terminated and negotiations conducted with 
the offeror ranked second, and so on until such a contract can be negotiated at a fair and reasonable price. 
 
PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA AND SCORING 
 
Factors to be considered by the proposal evaluation committee in determining which Offeror(s) will be selected for 
interviews/discussions will include, but are not necessarily limited to: 
 

a) Qualification and experience of staff assigned to this contract; 
 

b) Availability and time commitment of staff assigned to this contract; 
 

c) Understanding of the scope of services requested in this RFP; 
 

d) Recent relevant experience relative to IT systems; 
 

e) Approach or method of providing the requested services; 
 

f) Methods for ensuring accountability and responsiveness to the County;  
                                                    

g) Non-Binding Estimate of Cost; 
 

h) The results of interviews and/or discussions with Offerors; and 
 

i) References. 
 
REJECTION OF PROPOSALS 
 
The County of Russell reserve the right to cancel this Request for Proposal or reject any or all proposals received. 
 
PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE PERIOD 
 
Any proposal in response to this RFP shall be valid for ninety (90) days. At the end of the ninety days, the offer 
may be withdrawn at the written request of the Offeror. If the offer is not promptly withdrawn (within 5 business 
days) at that time, it remains in effect until an award is made or the solicitation is canceled. 
 
QUESTIONS/COMMENTS CONCERNING THIS RFP 
 
Pursuant to Virginia Code §2.2-4316, questions or comments concerning this RFP shall be submitted in writing via 
email to Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us or by regular mail to Lonzo Lester, P.O. Box 1207, Lebanon, VA 24266. 
 
CONTRACT AWARD 
 
The award of any contract will be made in accordance with the statutes for competitive negotiation for professional 
contracts contained in Virginia Code § 2.2-4301. It is the County’s intent to enter into a contract with the successful 
Offeror.  If the County determines in writing and in its sole discretion that only one Offeror is fully qualified, or that 
one Offeror is clearly more highly qualified than the others under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and 
awarded to that Offeror.  Upon the award or the announcement of the decision to award a contract as a result of 
this solicitation, the County will provide email notification to all offerors. 
 

mailto:Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us


 

NOTICE OF AWARD/PROTEST 
 
All offerors shall be provided a written Notice of Award via email.  Any offeror who desires to protest the decision 
to award the contract shall submit such protest in writing to Lonzo Lester, County Administrator, P.O. Box 1207, 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 no later than ten days after the announcement of the decision to award.  The written 
protest shall include the basis for the protest and the relief sought.  The County Administrator shall issue a 
decision in writing within ten days stating the reasons for the action taken.  This decision shall be final unless the 
offeror appeals within ten days of receipt of such written decision by invoking administrative procedures meeting 
the standards of § 2.2-4365, Code of Virginia, if available, or in the alternative by instituting legal action as 
provided in § 2.2-4364.  Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to permit an offeror to challenge the validity 
of the terms or conditions of the Request for Proposal.  Pending final determination of any protest or appeal, the 
validity of a contract awarded and accepted in good faith in accordance with this RFP shall not be affected by the 
fact that a protest or appeal has been filed. 
 
ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING 
 
By submitting a proposal, Offeror certifies that its proposal is made without collusion or fraud and that it has not 
offered or received any kickbacks or inducements from any other offeror, supplier or subcontractor in connection 
with their proposal, and that it has not conferred on any public employee having official responsibility for this 
procurement transaction any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services or anything of 
more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value was 
exchanged.  Furthermore, the provisions, requirements, and prohibitions contained in Sections 2.2-4367 through 
2.2- 4377 of the Virginia Code, pertaining to bidders, offerors, contracts and subcontractors, are applicable to this 
RFP, as are the provisions, requirements, and prohibitions contained in Sections 2.2-3100 through 2.2-3131 of the 
Virginia Code. 
 
DEBARMENT STATUS 
 
By submitting their proposals, Offerors certify that they are not currently debarred by the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, Russell County, Virginia, or any other locality from submitting bids or proposals on contracts for the type 
of Services/deliverables covered by this solicitation, nor are they an agent of any person or entity that is currently 
so debarred. 
 
In compliance with this Request for Proposals and to all the conditions imposed herein, the undersigned offers and 
agrees to furnish the services in accordance with the attached signed proposal or as mutually agreed upon in 
writing by subsequent negotiation. 
 
Company Name and Address: 
 
Date:   

 
 
Name:   

 
 
Title:   

 
 
Telephone:   

 
 
Email:   

 
 
Signature:  
 

 
 



 

Appendix 1 - 
 

List of Informational Technology Services 
 
Informational Technology Services 
 

● Cabling  
● Surveillance Site Planning/Mapping  
● Surveillance System Installation 
● Surveillance System Management 
● PC Installation  
● PC Repair 
● PC Setup 
● Printer Installation 
● Printer Repair  
● Copier Repair 
● AS400  

○ Work with Varying Devices  
○ Various Network Settings 
○ Client Access Installation 
○ IBM Line Printer Repair 
○ Legasuite Maintenance 
○ Virtual Printer Setup 
○ Work with Outque  

● Microsoft Office Installation 
● Microsoft Office Repair 
● Cell Phone Setup 
● Cell Phone Repair 
● Data Recovery  
● Data Backup 
● Setup and Maintenance of BrightSign  
● VPN Setup and Maintenance  
● Various Firewall Support  
● Work with POE Phones 
● Email and Internet Security  
● Norton and Malwarebytes Maintenance  
● Maintenance of Registrar Voting Machines  
● Access Point Setup, Installation, and Maintenance  
● Installation and Maintenance of Cell Phone Extenders  
● Switch and Patch Panel Installation and Maintenance 
●  Various Visual Aid Installations  
● Guard911 Installation and Maintenance  
● Network Scanning 
● Complete Cabling Renovation  
● Aid Virginia Supreme Court in Maintaining Circuit Court Clerk and District Court Clerk  
● Audio Visual Installation and Maintenance  
● Technical Contact for BVU 20 Accounts  
● Telemetry Support  
● Maintain GoDaddy Accounts  
● Maintain dotgov Account  
● Maintain IIS Server 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Appendix 2 - 
 

Maintenance Service Specifications 
 
Informational Technology Service Locations 
 

● Russell County Government Center  
○ Board of Supervisors Office  
○ Treasurer’s Office  
○ Commissioner’s Office  
○ Assessor’s Office/Reassessment Contractor  
○ Building Inspector’s Office  
○ Community Work Program  
○ Fitness Center  
○ Conference Center  
○ Virginia Tech Extension Office  
○ Emergency Management Office  
○ Maintenance Department  

● Russell County Courthouse  
○ Commonwealth Attorney’s Office  
○ Circuit Court Clerk’s Office  
○ Circuit Court Judge’s Office  
○ District Court Clerk’s Office  
○ Court Security  

● Russell County Sheriff's Office  
● Russell County 911 Center 
● Russell County Registrar’s Office  
● Russell County Social Services  
● Russell County Public Library  

○ Lebanon Library  
○ Honaker Library  

● Russell County PSA  
○ Administrative Office 
○ Warehouse Site  

● Russell County Canneries  
○ Castlewood Cannery  
○ Honaker Cannery  

● Russell County Community Centers  
○ Cleveland Community Center 
○ Finney Community Center   

● Russell County Animal Shelter  
● Russell County Solid Waste Department  

 
 



























































































Russell County Board of Supervisors                                                               276-889-8000

T r a v e l   R e q u e s t   A p p r o v a l    F o r m

Date Submitted 1/7/2019

Employee Name(s) Kimberly Short

Department Tourism

Phone 276-254-0745

Email (optional)

Destination Richmond, VA

Purpose of Travel
Meeting with NS & Todd Pillion on February 11th. HOA / Regional DMO meeting 

with VTC, VEDP, and legislators - February 12, 2019

Anticipated Expenses

Type of Expense Description of Expense
Daily Expenses 

(Except Airfare)

# of 

Days
Total Expenses Amt Approved

Airfare

Ground Transportation Gas $80.00

Conf/Registration Fees

Lodging The Berkely Hotel 2 $416.00

Meals and Tips $40.00

Mileage

Other

Grand Total $536.00

Employee Signature Date Signed

Co Admin Signature Date Approved

                                                 ***** Employee must submit two signed copies at time of request*****


























































































































































































































	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 2/4/19               6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Board Appointments.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 2/4/19         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 2/4/19            6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	RuralCaucus2019.pdf
	Wednesday, January 30th | Omni Richmond Hotel | 5:30 to 8:00 pm
	Hotel Information
	Refund Policy


	RFP - Russell County IT Svcs.pdf
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)
	FOR
	RFP SUBMISSION FORM
	OFFEROR MUST COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM WITH ITS PROPOSAL PACKAGE
	PURPOSE
	Russell County seeks a qualified contractor to provide Informational Technology Services for its governmental facilities.  Russell County desires to establish a three-year service contract, with option of two re-negotiated “one-year extensions” for in...
	The primary purpose of the RFP for Russell County IT services is to ensure system maintenance service of all County’s non-school related IT systems on a timely and consistent basis.




